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Independent Auditors’ Report

To The Members of Mobisy Technologies Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (prepared as per Accounting Standards)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements (prepared as per Accounting Standards) of Mobisy
Technologies Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and, a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Manhgement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ot error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statemenits based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
aterial misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited

Auditor's Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are apptopriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place
an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause an entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Attention is drawn to note 34 of the notes to accounts to the financial statements, wherein management has
mentioned that it has not accounted for employee share based payment plans as per the Guidance note on
Accounting for Employee Share Based Payments issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICATD’). In our view, non-accounting of employee share based payment cost is not in consonance with the
said Guidance note. Due to non-availability of sufficient information, impact of adjustments for stock options
granted and related disclosures thereof on the financial statements cannot be presently determined.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the aforesaid financial statements give
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31 March 2018, and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2017, included in these
financial statements are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements, prepared in accordance
with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (IGAAP) , that are audited by the predecessor auditor
whose report dated 14 September 2017 expressed an unmodified opinion.

r opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

a)

b)

4

h}

. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

we have sought and except for the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

except for the possible effects of the matter described in Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph above,
in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

except for the possible effects of the matter described in Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph in our
opinion, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act;

the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2018 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

the Company has been exempted from the requirement of its auditor reporting on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls [clause (i) of Section 143 (3)];

with respect to the Other Matter to be included in the Auditors” Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact on its financial position
in its financial statements {(Refer Note 29);

ii. the Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iti. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

iv. the disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made
since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2018. However amounts as
appearing in the audited financial statements for the pericd ended 31 March 2017 have been
disclosed.

Jor BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

S: Sharma
Partner
Membership number: 063980

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 12 September 2018



BSR&Co. LLP . . . . -
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report of Mobisy Technologies Private Limited

As referred in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Mobisy Technologies Private
Limited (‘the Company’) on financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

(i) (a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing ful particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which

(c)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
(vi)

its fixed assets are verified every year. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were physically verified during the
year and no material discrepancies were noted on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
immovable property.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on
verification between the physical stock and the book records were not material. For stocks
lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained by the
Management.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (¢c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
loans, investments, guarantees, and security to companies, firms or other parties and section
185 and 186 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income tax, Value Added Tax, Service tax, Goods and Service tax, Cess and any
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the
Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have
any dues on account of Sales tax, Customs duty and Excise duty.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax dues, Value Added
Tax, Service tax, Goods and Service tax, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears, as
at 31 March 2018, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no disputed amounts

(viiD)

payable in respect of Income tax, Service tax or Goods and Service Tax which have not
been deposited by the Company on account of disputes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions and banks.
The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings from government and there
«¢ no dues to debenture holders during the year.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report of Mobisy Technologies Private Limited
{continued)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xi1)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the
records of the Company, the term loans obtained during the year were applied for the purpose
for which they were obtained. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

The Company is a Private Limited Company and the provisions of section 197 of the Act is
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, there were no transactions with the related parties which
covered by Section 188 of the Act. The Company being a Private Company, the provisions
of Section 177 is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 42
of the Act in respect of preferential allotment/ private placement of equity shares and
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares during the year. Further, according to the
information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, we report that the amounts raised have been used for the purpose for which the
funds were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him under the provisions of Section 192 of the Act.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

Jfor BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Sang
Partner

Sharma

Membership Number: 063980

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 12 September 20138



Mobisy Techuologies Private Limited

Balance sheet
fAmuount in Rs)
Particulars Mote As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital k| 803,222 748,890
Reserves and surplus 4 389,208 11,119,514
1,192,430 11,868,404
Non-current labilities
Lang-term borrowings s 15,381,271 20,200,000
Other long terrn liability [ 195,167 82,461
Long-tcrm provision 7 4015248 1.669.363
19,591,686 21,951,824
Current Habilities
Short=term borrowings 8 13,561,937 5,000,000
Trade payables:
total ontstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises, and 9 - -
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small cnterprises 9 5,089,717 1,546,853
Other cutrent liabilities 10 42,579 878 18,774,082
Short term provisions 1,044,919 5492466
62,276,451 25913401
TOTAL 83!560.567 59,733,629
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 5,555,362 3,591,544
Intangible assets 13 4,727 455 4,776,880
Intangible asse1s under developrment 13 11,999,851 145,867
Deferted tax asscts (net) 14 - 636,335
Long-terms loans and advances 15 19,505,219 8,720,996
41,787,887 17,921,622
Cuorrent assets
Cuirent investments L& 7,692,575 18,028,924
Inventories 17 1,360,769 1,437,265
Trade receivables 1% 18,184,109 15,124,649
Cash and bank balances 19 10,302,346 5188 854
Shori-term loans and advances 20 2,640,323 1,392,993
Other cutrent assets 21 1.092 558 439,322
41,272,680 41,812,007
TOTAL R83.060.567 50.733&
2

Signlfieant accounting policies
The notes referred to above form en integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even dale attached

Jor BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Pariner
Membership Number : 063980

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 12 September 2018

for and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Mobisy Technologies Private Limlted
CIN No; U72900KA2008PTC045157

&7}%/,,_

Lalit Govind Bhise
Director
DIN: 02202845

Place; Bengaluru
Date; 12 September 2018

-

Shree Bhise
Direcior
DIN: (2759442

Place; Bengaluru
Date: 12 Scptember 2018



Maobisy Technologies Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars

Revenue from operations

Sale of software licenses and services
Sale of products

Tatal revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventorics of stock-in=trade
Employee benefits expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

(Loss) Profit before tax

Tax expense:
Current tax
MAT credit entitlement
Deferred tax charge/ (credit)
{Laoss)/ Profit for the year

Basic Earning per share ("EP5"):
Class [
Class I

Significant accounting policies

The notes referred to above form an integral pact of the financial statements.

As per our repott of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chavrtered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W- 100022

Sanfay Fharma
Puriner

Membership Number : 063980

Place: Bengaluru
Date; 12 September 2018

Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
22
121,825,676 §1,173,974
76,571,634 21,027,757
198,797,310 102,201,73]
23 1,139,815 773,356
199,937,125 102,975,127
24 77,860,043 24,675,275
25 76,496 {1,295,802)
26 110,430,067 55,825,961
27 4,137,241 180,034
12 and 13 4,430,125 2,493,830
28 39,442,792 17.831.936
236,376,764 99,711,231
{36,439,639) 3,263,896
N 347,275
. {347,275
686,335 (394,929)
{37.125.974) 3,658,825
33
(72.05) 72.12
{90.06) 90.15
2

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited

CIN No: U72900K A2008PTC045157

N

W

Lalit Govind Bhise
Director

DIN: 02202845

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 12 September 2018

o

Shree Bhise
Director
DIN: 02759442

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 12 September 2018



Mobisy Technologies Private Limited
Cash flow statement

{Amount in Rs)

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial staterments.

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration Number:101 243W/W-100022

Sagjsy Siarma
Partie|
Merbership Number : 063980

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 12 September 2018

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Cash flow from operating activities
{Loss) Profit before tax (36,439,639) 3,263,896
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,430,125 2,493 330
Profit on sale/ write off of assets (net) {66,877 {29,674)
Provision for rent equalisation 108,501 93,620
Allowance for doubtful debts 1,428,425 .
Profit on redemption of mutual funds (963,927) (13,924)
Finance costs 4,137,241 180,031
Interest income (36,820) {325,133)
Advances written-off - 65,223
Bad debts written-off 188,759 135,380
Operating cash flows before working capital changes: (27,214,212) 5,863,249
Increase in inventories 76,496 {1,295,802)
Increase in trade receivables (4,676.643) (8,663,432)
Increase in loans and advances {1,977,166) (957,303)
Increase in other current assets {653,558) {165,146)
Increase in cutrent liabilities 27,352,865 7,554,344
Increase in provisions 2,798,334 1,426,475
Cash generated from operations (4,293.880) 3,762,383
Income taxes paid, net (10,054,388) (2,772,667)
Net cash flow (used) in/ generated from operating activities (A) {14,348,268) 989,716
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (18,243,288) (6,414,922}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 111,663 32,050
Investment in mutual funds (14,000,000) (20,015,000)
Redemption of fixed deposits, net - 3,500,000
Proceeds from redemption of mutual funds 25,300,276 2,000,000
Tnterest received on fixed deposit 37,142 407,740
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (6,794,207) (20,510,132)
Cash Rows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Class II equity shares 25,580 -
Proceeds from issue of preference shares 6,224,420 -
Proceeds from borrowings 28,543,208 20,200,000
Repayment of loans (5,000,000} (334,646)
Interast and loan processing charges paid {4,137,244) (180,031)
Net cash generated from financing activities (53] 26,055,967 19,685,323
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 4913,452 164,907
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 19) 4,888,854 4,723,947
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 19) 9,802,346 4,888,854
Notes to cash flow statement
Component of cash and equivalents
Cash on hand - 75,353
Balances with banks
- T current accounts 9,802,346 4,813,301
Total cash and cash equivalents 9,802,346 4,888,854

for and o behalf of the Board of Directors of

Mohisy Pechinologies Private Limited
CIN No: D72900K A2008PTCO45157

' ,’1//
.Qy
Lalit Govind Bhise
Director
DIN: 02202845

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 12 September 2018

g

Shree Bhise
Director
DIN: 02759442

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 12 September 2018



Maoblisy Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements

2

1

L]

-

Company overview

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited ("the Company”) was incorporated on 4 February 2008 vnder the provisions of Companies Act, 1956, The
Company's registered office is Mobisy Technologies Private Limited, 3rd Floor, Sri Arunachaleshwara Building, 75/1, Bellandur Main Road,
Bellandur, Bangalore 560103. The business operations of the Company are carried out at various cities in India,

The Company is in the business of developing web and mabile applications for a variety of platforms for more than four years. The Company has two
main products Bizom, a sales force and supply chain automation solution and Distiman, a mobile application that connects retailers 1o Fast Moving
Consumer Goods (FMCG) brands and ensures just-in-time stocking and transactions with retailers.

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these financial statements,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (GAADP) under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting. GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 and the relevant provisions of Companies Act 2013,
as applicable. Accounting Standards (*AS’) and other generally accepted accounting principles in India, The financial statements are presented in
Indinn Rupees and rounded off o nearest rupee, unless other wise stated,

The Company is a Small and Medium Sized Company (SMC) as defined in the general instructions in respect of accounting standards specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Aet”), vead with rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, Accordingly, the Company has
complied with the accounting standards ag applicable to-a Small and Medium Sized Company.

2.2 Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared and presented on 4 going concern hasis, not withstanding the excess of current liabilities over current
assets. Subsequent to the balance sheet date the Cotnpany received funding amounting to Rs 19.98 million from Private Equity Investors. Refer Note
39.

2.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP") requires Management 1o make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision 10 accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the eurrent and futre
years.

2.4 Current and non-current classiflcation

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to gettle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting petiod.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A linbility is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

- Tt is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

-1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, ot

_ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting peripd.
The Company classifies ail other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and Siabitities are classified as non-cutrent assets and liabilities.

Operating cyvele

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation int cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

1.5 Inventories

[nventorics include Fast Moving Consumier Goods (FMCG) held for trade, which are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is
determined vsing First-in First-out basis (FIFO) method. The cost of inventories includes expenditure incuered in acquiring the inventories, production
or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of selling expenses.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis,




Mobisy Technologles Private Limited
Notes to financial statements {continued)

2.6 Revenue recogoition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured
as follows:

(i) fnecome from software services
Revenue from "right to use” the application system {Bizom) is recognized proportionately over the period during which the access to such application
is provided to the customear.

Unbilled revenue represents cost and eamings in excess of billings as at the end of the reporting year.

Unearned revenue represents billing in excess of revenue recognized. Advance payments received from customners for which no services have been
rendered are presented as ‘ Advance from customers’. |

(iiy Sale of goods
Sales are recognised, net of returns and trade discounts, on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer, which generally
coincides with the delivery of goods to customers.

(iiii) Tnterest is recognized on a time proportion basis taking inte account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
2.7 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and/ or accurmulated impairment loss, if
any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment asset compriscs its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes
or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use; any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of property, plant and equipment are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from
the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Property, plant and equipment acquired wholly or partly with specific grant/subsidy from government, are recorded at the net acquisition cost to the
company.

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings %o the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable
to acquisition ot construction of those property, plant and equipment which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use are capitalised. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Intangibles assets under development includes cost incurred towards internally self-generated assets that are not ready for use at the balance sheet date.

Depreciation is provided from the date of capitalization using the straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies
Act 2013, except for furniture and fixture whereas different life is considered based on internal assessment by the management.
The useful lifs considered for depreciation are as follows:

Category of assets Useful life
Cornputers 3 years
Office equipments 5 years
Furniture and fittings 5 years
Testing equipments 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight line basis over the period of Jease or useful life whichever is lower.




Mobisy Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

28

29

2.10

.11

Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets are capitalized at their original cost of acquisition including taxes, duties and other incidental expenses.

Internally generaied intangible assets

Intangible assets capitalized also includes softwares developed in-house by the Company.

(i) Expenditure on research activitics, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scicntific or technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

{ii) Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products or processes. Development
expenditure is capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future
economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends lo and has sulficient resources to complete development and to use the asset. The
expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct fabour, overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the assct for its intended
use, and directly attributable borrowing costs (in the same manner as in the case of tangible fixed assets), Other development expenditure is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates.

Intangible assets are amorlised over the period the Company expects to derive econonic benefit from their use, Management believes that the period
of amortization is representative of the period over which the Company expects to derive economic benefits from the use of the assets.

The estimated useful life of intangible assets are three years.
Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or a group of assets comprising a cash generating unit
may be impaired. IT any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. For an asset or group of assets that does
not generate largely independent cash in-flows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the assct belongs. If such
recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. I at the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount 13
reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a muximum of depreciable historical cost. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the carrying amount of asset does not exceed the net book value that would have been determined; il no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Investments

[nvestments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments are made, are
classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable acquisition charges such as
brokerage, fees ete.

Current investments ate carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term
investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the
investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal praceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit
and loss.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded using the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the respective transaction. Exchange differences arising
on foreign exchunge transactions settled during the period are recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the period.

Monetary assets and liabilities denaminated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rates on that date, the
resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the period. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
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12

Emgployee benefits

{\) Short-term employee henefit:

Shgrt term employee benefits including salaries, social security contributions and bonuses payable within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the refated services and non monetary benefits (such as medical care} for current employees are estimated and measured
on an undiscounted basis.

(ii) Defined Contribution Plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and has no
obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to Government
administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii1) Defined Benefit Plans:

213

2.14

215

The Company’s gratuity benefil scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is caleulated by
estimating the amount of future henefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The caleulation of
the Company’s obligation under the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit eredit method.

The Company recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefil plans immediately in the statement of profit and loss. All expenses
velnted to defined benefit plans are recognised in employee benefits expense in the statement of profit and loss. When the benefits of a plan arc
improved, the portion of the increased benefit related 1o past service by employees is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the average period until the benefits become vested, The Company récognises gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

Leases

Assets acquired under leases other than finance leases are classified as operating leases. The total lease rentals (including scheduled rental increases) in
respect of an asset taken on operating lease are charged to the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the lime patiern of the benefit, Initial direet costs incurred specifically for an operating lease are deferred
and charged to the statement of profit and loss over the lease term,

Income taxes

Income-tax expense comprises current 1ax (i;e. amount of tax for the year determined in accordance with Indian Income-tax laws) and deferred tax
charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of change in timing differcnces between accounting income and taxable income). Income-tax expense is
recognised in profit or loss except {hat the tax related to items recognised directly in reserves is also recognised in those reserves.

Minimum alternate tax ("MAT’) paid in accordance with tax laws, which gives rise to future economic benefits in she form of adjustment of future
income lax liability is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax within the eligible period.

Current tax is measured at the amount to be paid to (tecovered from) the taxation authoritics, using the applicable tax rates and tax laws. Deferred tax
is recognised in respect (o timing differences between taxable income and accounting income i.e. the differences that originate in one period and are
capable of reversal in one or mare subsequent periods, The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are
recognised using the tax rates and ta¥ laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent {here is reasonable certainty that the assels can be realized in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation ar
carried forward business loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty of realization of such assets.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/ virtually certain
(as the case may be) to be realized.

Earnings per share

The basic carning per share for each class of equity shaces that has a different right to shate in the net profit is computed by dividing the net profit /
loss attributable to equity share holders of each class of shares for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
reporting period.
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Cash and cash equivalents

C'ash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less from the balance sheet date, but excludes restricted cash balances.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indircet method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effeets of transactions of a non-cash nature and
any deferrals or aceruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generaling, investing and financing
activities of the company are segregated.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions for losses and contingencies arising as a result of a past event whete the management considers it probable that a liability may be incurred
are made on the basis of the best reliable estimates of the expenditure required to settle the present value. Provisions are reviewed at cach Balance
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Comtingencies

The disclosure of a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
cutflow of resources.

No provision or disclosure is made when, as a result of abligating events, there is 2 possible obligation or a present obligation where the likelihood of
outflow of resources is remote.

Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
sconomic benefits expected to be received under it, are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resourees embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle a present obligation as o result of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.
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3. Share capital
4! f in Rs)
Particulars As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017
Number of shares  Amount in Rs.  Number of shares Amount in Rs.
Auwthorized capital
Class 1 and [1 equity shares of Re.1 each (31 March 2017: Rs. 10 each) 001,000 401,000 80,800 RO8,000
0.001% Compulsorily convertible prefereace shares of Re.1 ¢ach (31 March 2017: Rs.10 cach) 599,000 599,000 24,300 243,000
1,500,000 1,500,000 105,100 1,051,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capiral
Class I equity shares of Re. 1 each (Previous year Rs.10 cach) 549427 549,427 50,600 506,000
Class 1 cquity shares of Re.1 each (Previous year Rs.10 cach) 1,045 1,045 U 1,000
0.001% Compulsorily convertible preference shares of Re.1 each (31 March 2017: Rs.10 each} 252,750 252,750 24,180 241,800
803,222 803,222 74,889 T48.890

(8} Reconciliation of the ber of shares and amount outsiznding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
Partlculars As at 3L March 2818 As at 31 March 2017
Number of shares _Amount in Rs. Number of shares Amount in Rs.

Class 1 equity shares

Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 506,090 506,000 50,609 506,090
Add: Tssued during the year on conversion of compulsarily convertible debentures {Refer Mote 5} 43,237 431,337 - -
Number of shares outstanding as al the elose of the year 549,427 549,427 50,609 506,090
Class 11 cquity shares

Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 1,000 1,000 100 1,000
Add: 1ssued during the year 45 45 - -
Number of shares outstanding as at the close of the year 1045 1,045 100 1,000
0.001% Compulsorily convertible preference shares

Mumber of shares outslanding ns at the beginning of the year 241,800 241,800 24,180 241,800
Add: Tssued during the year 10,950 10,950 - -
Number of shares € ding as al the close of the year 252,750 252,750 24,180 241,800

b) Rights, preferemces and restrictions attached to shares:

Equity shares

(i) The Company has two class of equity share, having a par valie of Re.1 (31 March 2017: Rs, 10 each)

(ii)The holder of Class 1 of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and such amount of dividend per share as declared by the Company.

(iiiyThe holder of Class 11 of equity shares i.e. 'Class A equity shares with differentinl voting rights' is entitled to voting rights and dividend as declared by the Company equivalent to 242 Class
| equity shares, only till Wertes A' Compulsarily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) as mentioned below are converted to equity shares.

(iv} In the event of winding up or olher liguidity event. Class Il equity shares would have preference over Class | equity shares

1.001% Compulsorily convertible preference shares
(1) The Company has only one class of Prefercice Share i.c. ‘Series A CCPS', having a par value of Re. | (31 March 2017; Rs. 10 each)

(i1) Serics A COPS would be eligible for dividend of 0.001%
(iii) Inf the event of winding up or other liguidity event, ‘Series A CCPS! would have preference over equity sharcs.

c) Details of shares held by cach shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder Type of holder As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017

Number % of Holding Number %, of Holding
Class I equity shayes
Lalit Govind Bhise Individual 187,500 34.13% 18,750 37.05%
Vasudeva Manjunath Individual 93,750 17.06% 9,375 18.52%
M/s R L Pariners Partnership firm 90,630 16.50% 9,063 17.91%
Shree Bhise Individual 75.000 13.65% 7.500 14.82%
Anas Ahmedjayyash A Abdulkhalig Individual 35828 6.52% - -
Class 1l equity shares
M/s Ojas Partners Partnership firm 1,045 100 .00% 100 100.00%%6
0.001% Compulsority Convertible Prefercnee Shares
M/s Ojas Pactners Partnership firm 252,750 100.00% 24,180 100.00%

d) Preference Shares of Class ‘Series A CCPS' referred above in Note 3(b) are compulsorily convertible to equity shares on earlier of the following event :

(i) Public offering of Equity Sharcs of the Company (1FO)

(i} Sale of majotity sharcholding {>50%) of the Company for cash or listed sccurities

(i) on 31 January 2023.

However, at the option of 'Series A CCPS' Prefe Shares holders, the same can also be converted ta equity shares at any time before date of Compulsory conversion, referred above.

¢) The Company at the Exta-ordinary general meeting held on 25 October 2017 sub-divided Class T and Class IT equity shares and CCPS of face value of Rs.10 cach into shares of Re.! cach
vespeclively.
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4. Reserves and surplus

{Amonnt in Rs)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Securities premium account
At the commencement of the year 16,008,370 16,008,870
Add : Premiutn on fresh issue of shares [Refer note (a)] 26,395,668 -
42,404,538 16,008,870
Surplus/ (deficit) in statement of profit and loss:
At the commencement of the year (4,889,356) (8,548,181)
Add: (Loss)/ profit for the year (37,125,974) 3,658,825
42,015,330) (4,889,356)
389,208 11,119,514
Note {a)

The Company at the Board meeting dated 24 January 2013 has issued 43,337 numbers Class I equity shares on conversion of Compulsorily Convertible
Debenture at premium of Rs 465.11 per share, 45 numbers of Class II equity shares and 10,350 numbers of CCPS at premium of Rs 567.44 per share.

5, Long-term borrowings
{Amount in Rs)

Particolars As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Unsecured:
Debentures
Nil {31 March 2017: 202) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures {CCD) of Rs.100,000 each
[Refer note (A)] - 20,200,000
Term loan
Long-term loans from Banks and financial institutions [Refer Note (B) and Note 10] 15,381,271 -

15,381,271 20,200,000

Terms and conditions:

(A) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures:
. During previous year, Company had issued 202 numbers of Zero per cent coupon rate Compulsorily Convertible Debentures ("CCD") of Rs.100,000
cach, with maturity period of 14 months or such carlier period unless:

a) Company consummates, an cquity financing pursuant to which it allots Class I equity shares (exeluding any and all of its existing convertible securities
(CCD and Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) which are to be converted into Class 1 equity shares and with the principal purpose of raising
capital, then the CCD under this agreement shall automatically be converted into the Class 1 equity shares by applying a discount rate of 1.5% 10 the new
investor price for each month (on a pro ratu basis) from the date of the respective new investments disbursements up to the date of the actual completion of
the new investment round subject to a maximum discount of 20% on the price paid by investors in the new offering.

b) In the event of 'Change of Control', Debentures shall be converted to Class [ equity shares at discounted prices as mentioned above. 'Change of Control
shall mean:

iy any consolidation or merger of the Company with or into any ather corpotation ot other entity or person, or any other corporate reorganization in which
the Company shall not be the continuing or surviving entity of such reorganization or

ii) any transaction or series of related transactions by the Company in which in excess of 50% of the Company's voting power is transferred, or

iii) sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company.

2. During the current year CCD was converted to Class I equity shares at Rs. 466.11 per share (also Refer Note 3)

(B) Term loan:
(i) From Capital First Limited - amounting to: R 2,345,340 (31 March 2017: Nil). The loan carries interest rate of 18% and is repayable in 36 equated
monthly installments with effeet from December 2G17.

(ii) From Kotak Mahindra Bank - amounting to: Rs 3,043,210 (31 March 2017; Nif), The loan carries interest rate of 17.75% and is repayable in 24
cquated monthly installments with effect from December 2017.

(iii) From TATA Capital Financial Services Limited - amounting to: Rs 3,029,337 (31 March 2017: Nil). The loan carries interest rate of 17.75% and is
repayable in 24 equated monthly instaliments with effect from December 2017,

(iv) From Deutsche Bank AG - amounting to: Rs 2,312,266 (31 March 2017: Nil). The loan carries interest rate of 17% and is repayable in 36 equated
monthly installments with effect from November 2017.
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5, Long-term borrowings (continued)

(v} From HDFC Bank Limited - amounting to: Rs 3,690,306 (31 March 2017: Nil). The loan carrics interest rate of 15.75% and is repayable in 36 equated

monthly installments with effect from December 2017.

(vi) From Edelweiss Retail Finance Liinited - amounting to: Rs 3,608,668 (31 March 2017; Nil). The loan carries interest rate of 18% and is repayable in

24 equated monthly installments with cffect from December 2017.

(vii) From Ratnakar Bank Limited - amounting to: Rs 2,371,859 (31 March 2017: Nil). The loan carries interest rate of 17.5% and is repayable in 36

cquated monthly installments with effect from January 2017,

(viii) From Indusind Bank Limited - amounting to: Rs 2,264,979 (31 March 2017: Nil). The loan carries interest rate of 17.5% and is tepayable in 24

equated monthly installments with effect from January 2018.

(ix} From Bajaj Finance Limited amounting to: Rs 2,745,375 {31 March 2017: Nil). The loan carries interest rate of 16.5%.

6. Other long-term liability

(Amount inn Rs)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Rent equalization resetve (Refer note 32) 195,167 82,461
195,167 82,461
7. Long-term provision
{Amount in Rs}
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Provision for employee benefits:

Gratuity (Refer note 30) 4,015,248 1,669,363
4,015,248 1,669,363
8. Short-term borrowings
(Amount in Rs)
Particulars As at Asat
' 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Secured
Bank overdraft [Refer note (a}} 13,561,937 -
Unsecured
Short-term loan® . 5,000,000
13,561,937 5,000,000

* includes payable to related parties (Refer Note 31)

Terms and conditions:

(a) Secured:
From HDFC Bank Limited (bank overdraft) amounting to: Rs 13,561,937, The overdraft facility is secured by Floating charge on book debts amounting to
Rs 15,000,000
9. Trade payables
{Amonnt in Rs}
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Trade payables:
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterptises; and - -
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 5089717 1,546,853
5,089,717 1,546,853
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140, Other current liabilities
(Amount int Rs)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Employees related payables* 12,628,622 9,198,744
Uneamed revenue 10,292,506 4,533,018
Current matutities of long term loans®* 10,030,549 -
Statutory liabilities 2,630,966 1,542,589
Accrued expenses 3,249,845 1,371,073
Advance from customers 1,115,665 224,619
Rent equalization reserve (Refer note 32) 6,954 11,159
Other payables 2,624,711 1,802,880
42,579,878 18,774,082

* includes payable to related parties (Refer Note 31)
** Refer Note 5

1L, Short term provisions

(Amount in Rs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Provision for employee benefits:
(i} Compensated absence - 537,731
(i) Gratuity (Refer note 30} 1,044,919 54,735
1,044,919 592,466
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Motes to financial statements (continued)

14, Deferred iax asset (net)

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Deferred tax assels
Provision for employee benefits - 698,903
Other temporary differences - 61,374
Total deferred tax asset - 760,279
Deferved tax liabilities
Excess of depreciation on fixed assets under Income fax act, 1961 over depreciation under Companies Act, 2013 - 73.944
Total deferred tax liabllitles - 73,944
Deferred tax asact {net) - 686,335
Note:

sl " Is as

In view of the taxable losses, deferred tax asset has not been recognized in these fi
sufficient future taxable income will be available for set-off against taxable profits.

15. Long=term loans snd advances

believes that there is no virtual certainty that

fAdmanuni in Rs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Unsecured, considered good
Advance income tax, net of provision 16,282,099 6,327,712
Balance with Goverament suthoritics 925,490 325,654
MAT credit receivable 1,464,030 1,464,030
Rental and other deposits 733,600 603,600
19,505,219 8,720,996
16. Current investments
{Amount In Rs}
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Unguoted mintaal funds:
(1) ICIC1 imutual fund-flexible income plan-Drt Growth 18,113.17 units {31 March 2017: 33,836 units) 3,142,742 101, 000,000
(i} 1CICT mutual fund-liquid plan-direct - Growth 9,580.72 units (31 March 2017: 32,409.97 units} 4,549,833 8,028,924
7,692,575 18,028,924
Apprepate market value of unquoted investments 7,867,873 18,275,452
Aggregate amount of impai 1 in value of inv t - -
17. Inventorics
(Amouni in Rs}
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Stock in trade 1,360,769 1,437,265
1.360.769 1.437,265
18, Trade receivables
{Amonnt in Rs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 20118 31 March 2017
Unisecured
Receivables ovtstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they became dug for payment
Considered good 291,574 592,559
Considered doubtful = -
101,514 592,559
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables - -
(A} 291,574 592,550
Other receivables
Considered good 19,320,960 14,532,090
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables 1,428,425 -
(B) 17,892,535 14,532,090
(A)+(B) 18,184,109 15,124,649
— \
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18, Cash and bank balances
{Amount in Rs)

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand 75,553
Balances with banks:
« In current accounts 9,802,246 4,813,301
Other bank balsnces:
- In fixed deposits*® 500,000 500,000
10,302,346 5.388.854
# Bank deposits amounting to Rs Nil {31 March 2017 - Rs.500,000} lien is placed for availing of corporate credit card.
20, Shori-term loans and advances
{Amount in Rs)
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Unsecured and considered good
Advance 1o vendors 1,958,318 190,605
Loans and advances o employees 319,152 903,077
Rental and other deposits 298,000 243,000
Prepaid expenses 64.853 56311
2,640,323 1,392,993
21, Other current asscls
{Amount int Rs)
Particolars Asal As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Unsecnred and considered good
Unbilled revenue 1,079,042 425484
Interest accred but not due on deposits 10,359 10,681
Other receivables 3.157 31457
1,092,558 439312




Mobisy Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

21. Revenue from operations

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Sale of software licenses and services

- Domestic sales 115,567,975 67,153,793
-~ Export sales 6,257,701 14,020,181
121,825,676 81,173,974
Sale of products
- Domestic traded goods 76,971,634 21,027,757
76,971,634 21,027,757
198,797,310 102,201,731
23. Other income
(Amount in Rs)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Profit on redemption of mutual funds 963,927 13,924
Profit on sale of fixed assets 66,877 29674
Interest income from fixed deposits 36,820 164,600
Interest income on income tax refunds E 160,533
Provision no longer required written back - 385,810
Miscellaneous income 72,191 18,855
1,139,813 773,396
24. Puyrchase of Stock-in-trade
(Amount in Rs)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Traded goods
Purchase of stock-in-trade 77,860,043 24,675,275
77,860,043 24,675,275
2&. Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade
{Amount in Rs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Stock-in-trade

Tnventories at the end of the year:
Stock-in-trade

Net decrease/ (increase) in stock in trade

1,437,265 141,463
1,437,265 141,463
1,360,769 1,437,265
1,360,769 1,437,265
76,496 (1,295,802)




Mobisy Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements {continued)

26. Employee benefits expense

{Amount in Rs)
Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Salaries and wages 100,732,651 49,787,691
Contributions to provident fund 2,248,394 1,415,554
Grawity 3,336,069 1,072,144
Staff welfare cxpenses 4,112,953 3,550,572
110,430,067 55.825,961
27. Finance ¢osts
{Amount in Rs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Interest expense on:
(i) Borrowings 3,648,865 31,569
{ii) Delayed / deferred payment of taxes - 4,087
Loan processing charges 488,376 144,375
4,137,241 180,031
28, Other expenses
(Amount in Rs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Legal and professional charges 6,147,791 2,676,846
Delivery service fee 5,683,614 1,769,369
Travelling and conveyance 5,778,186 3,323,748
Server hosting charges 4,497,443 854,850
Technical consultancy charges 3,824,449 2,397.471
Business promotion and marketing 3,448,198 229,663
Rent 2,286,561 2,042,240
Communication 2,025,587 2,031,899
Allowance for doubtful debts 1,428,425 .
Rates and taxes 2,083,623 561,351
Payments to auditors [Refer note (i)] 600,000 250,000
Repairs and maintenance:
- Machinery 211,227 185,927
- Others 9,840 13,878
Office maintenance expense 330,413 606,166
Power and fuel 331,441 211,453
Bad debts 188,759 135,380
Printing and stationery 124,089 188,492
Net loss on foreign cutrency transactions and translation 52,044 18,842
Brokerage and commission - 28,000
Advances written-off E 65,223
Miscellaneous expenses 391,102 241,136
39,442,792 17.831.936
Note:
(i) Auditors remuneration
{Amount in Rs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Statutory audit fees 450,000 200,000
Tax audit fees 50,000 50,000
reimbursement of expenses 100,00 -
600,000 250,000




Mobisy Technobogles Private Limited
Notes to fi fal 15 {continned)

19, Contingent llabilities and commitments

Partlculars Ag at e f“;’)“

: : 31 March 2018 31 March 217
(|) Comn_‘ur.mcnts Refer Note A Refer Nate A
{iiy Contingent Liabilitics Refer Note B Refer Nate B
Arrears of cumulative dividend on preference share capital 13 L
Claims against the Company net seknowledged as debts {Refer Note C) 13,500,000 750,000

Note:

A. Sharc Subscription cum Share Holders Agreement

L Cmn;?uny fias entered into Shive Subscription curn Share Holders Agreement (SSHA) during the financial ycar 2012-33 and fusrther amended in financia) year 2013-14 1o increase
the Capital, wherain M/s Ojas Parners {Irvestors) were issued equity and preference shares for investment of Rs 14,000,000,

2. As per the SSHA, Investors shull te provided with Exit from the Company in respect of their eatire ir 1 in the Company by any of the fellowing means, at the option of the
Investor nn or hefore 33 December 2017:

(i) Qualified 1PO or Offer for Sule leading 1o listing of the Company's equily shares on B by Stock Exchange or the National Stock Exchunge or such other recognised Stock
Exchunge suggested by the Investors, which i furlhier subjeet 1o other conditions as per the SSHA Qualified 1PO" means closing ofan wnderwritten public offering ol equily shares of
{he Company at & minimum pre- PO market capilalisation of Rs.l 50,00,00,000 or such vther valuation approved by the Buard at that puint of time having regard to the then prevailing

market conditions and the advice of un independent merehant banker.

(i) Strarcgic Sale
‘Strategic Sale' means sale of majority shaveholding {>50%) of the Companyy for cash or listed securitics as approved by the [ at & mini cquity valuation acceptable 1o the
{nvestors and the Promoters.

(i) nduction of new jnvestor oF strategic partners who can buy the stake of the [nvesiors i the aforesaid valuation.
As per the SSHA, Company shall underiake ko bear all expenses for any of the sforassid events, regardless of the route chosen.

The Company has subsequently entered in an revised sharcholder's agreement (hetein after calied "revised agreement’) dnted 20 April 2018 whercby the Company . the Promoters, e
cxisting sharcholders, the Qutgoing Sharcholders and M/fs Ojas Partners have accorded their consent in writing to the terms and conditi tipulated in the revised agr t and
agreed that all the existing agreements and terms and conditlons as stated above stands terminnted. The revised terms and conditions as detailed below:

(1) Lnitlal Public Offering (*IPO7) of Shares
(a) The Campany and the Promoters ahall urrange for an IPQ of the Company's shares on or before 31 Mareh 2021,

{2} Offer for Sale
Tn the event that the Company docs not or is unable for any reason 10 nuake an 1PO by 31 March 2021, the Promolers and the Campany will render all necessary assistance to the
Investors in making an offer for sate.

{3y Buyback of the Investors Securlties

In the cvent that the Company docs not of is unable for any reason to make an 1PO or an Offer for Sole in the manner provided in sharcholder's agreement, the Investors shall be
cntitled, at their disgretion, W require

(i) the Company and / or Promaters (o fined 1 third party buyer o purchase; or

(iiy the Company to buyback and ( ar the Promoters to purchage (ineluding through their respective affiliates), the Tnvestors Securities held by the Inveslors in the Company, in each
mstance. at @ price that provides w {he Investors an 1RR of 25% (twenty five per cont) orat such price that may be decided by an independent firm of chartered accountants {appointed
i consultation with the New Investors), whichever is higher, from the date of disbursement, in one or mare instlments, but within 2 periad of 12 (twelve) munths from exercice off
such option by such lnvesior,

3. [f the Company has not provided the [nvestors an opportunity to exit by any of the aforementioned methoils on or before 31 December 2047 the Investors at theif OpLOK may require
the Company to provide the it to the [nvestor at the higher of fair markel value or return of investment with an TRR of 25% from the date of investment 1ill the date of exit by any one
of the Tollowing options:

{iy Find o buyer for the Tnvestors” sharcholding in the Company; or

(i) Buy-back by the Company and/or the Prometers of the shares from the Tnvestors,

B. Unsecured short-term horrawing
During financial year 2015-16, Company tuad availed unsecured shori-term loan of Rs.5 million (rom investos- M/s Cjas Pariners and termination / seiiement of the loan was as

agreed below:

I, In case of any subseq capital infusion or fresh isue of equity o preference shares tor an amount of Re.5 million (at premium ar otherwise), shares shall be provided 1o the
investors (Ojus Partners) for the outstanding loan amount, ot 2% discounted share price as full antl final settlement.

2. {n case of no such capital infusion as mentioned above, the investors ut tieir gole diseretion shall be entitled the Tollowing:
(i) Investors shall be provided with the equity shares of the Company a% full dod final settiement for the outstanding loan amount a1 a share price as determined theough a Valuation.

(i1} Compiny o repay the outstanding Yoan amount at 15% interest per anmim.

3_In case of any Merger or Acquisition of the Company within | year from the dat of loan, Company shall re-pay One and hatf-times of the Loan amount (2 the Investors as foll and
Ninal seltlement.

Daring the year, the Company lhas repaid the loan aleng with interest

(C) The Company has entered into Reseller agreernent with Mr. P.S. Parasuram (herein after referred a5 "Regeller™ on 12 July 2014, As per the leoms of conteact, if clients arg referred
16 the Company by the Reseller, the Resclier is entitled to 30% of the subscription fecs. The contract has described certain roles and responsibilities to the Rescller which accouding to
Company, the Reseller failed to perform. Since the Reseller has not fulfilled his sontractual commitments as per the temms of the conteact, the Company has issued a notice of
terination on 19 May 2017, However, the Rescller belicves that he is entitled to 30% of the subscription fecs in perpetuity, Thereaftcr, the Reseller bas issued a notice of arbittation
whercin he has claimed Rs. 2 million for the period January 2017 to Augst 2017 and Rs. 9 million which is an expected 30% share of the subscription fees for the next 36 months and
2.5 million as compensation and legal costs and interest. The Rescller sent a fetter stating That they would approach the Honorable High Court at Karnataka, Bangalore secking an
arbitration to be appointed.

Subsequently, the matler came up for hearing before the Hon'ble High Court of Kamataka and the Hon'ble court appeinted Mr. K.G. Hosur to acl as an arbiteator 1o resolve the
dispute. On 18 June 2018 the matier was posted for framing of jesues. However, the case was adjourned for settiement of iseues as the sole arbitrator submitted his regignation,

The Conpany and its legal sounsel believes that the final outcome of the above dispute should be in favour of the Corpany and there should not be any materiakadverse jmpact on the
financial stalemenis. o ( ] 27T
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Moblksy Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial (continued)

30, Employee benefits

{i) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes provident fund contributions to Defined contribution plan for qualified employ
of its payroll costs 1o fund the benefits. The Company has recognised Rs. 2,248,394 (31 March 2017: Rs. 1415

statement of profit and loss.

(ity Defined benefit plan-unfunded

Grafuity expénses in the statement of profit and loss for the year is Rs. 3,336,069 (

“Employee Benefits” us prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Stendards) Rules, 2006.

Assumptlons:
Particulars As at| Agal
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Discount ralc 1.75% 7.50%
Salary escalation 7.00% 6.50%
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Aurition rate Upto age 2 25% Upto age 30 3%
Age 3145 16% Age 31-45 2%
Age 46 and above: 1% Age 46 and above: 1%
Mortlity rates Tndian Assured Lives (2006-08) Indian Assured Lives (2006-08)

Maximum ceiling limit

Ult Mortality Rates
2,000,000

Ult Mortality Rates

1,000,000

The estimates of fohure salary increascs, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,

employment market

Assumnptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality rates, The valuation

31. Related party .

A) Names of the related pariles and description of redationship

rees. Under the scheme the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage
,554) as expense lowards its provident fund contribution in the

31 March 2017 Rs. 1,072,144). In accordance with Accounting Standard 15 (revised 2005) on

such as supply and demand in the

of defined benefit obligation {s sensitive to the mortatity assumptions,

Description of relarionship
0Qjas Partners Shareholder
Vasudev Manjunath Shareholder
Key management personnel:
Lalit Govind Bhise Executive Direclor
Shree Bhise Exceutive Director
B) Transactlons with related partles:
fAmount in )
Pardcolars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(i) Jasue of shares
Ojas Pariners - Class 1[ equity shares 25,580 -
Ojas Partners - 0,001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 6,224,418 -
{{i} [nterest on loan paid
Ojas Partners 1,250,000 -
{ili1 Repayment of loan
Ojag Pariners 5,000,000 -
(I¥) Remuneration to management personnel
Lalit Govind Bhise 3,000,000 2,400,000
Vasudey Manjunalh 3,000,000 1,800,000
Shree Bhise 3,000,000 1.200.600
C) The Company has the following amount due fromf to relaied partles:
{4dmonnt in Rs)
Particulars Ag at Ag at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(i} Remuneration payable
Lalit Govind Bhisc 1,575,939 1.518,98%
Shree Bhisce 647,959 630,464
Vasudev Manjunsth 1,120,768 1,038,381
() Shori-term borrowings {unsceured)
Ojus Partners - 5,000,000
e L
&t i
(+f. \n
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) :\ l..c"



Mobisy Technologies Private Limited
Notes to Mmancial statements (coniinued)

32, Operating Leases

The total rental expense ander non-cancellable operating lease rentals for the year cnded 31 March 2018 amounted (o Rs 1,570,561 (31 barch 2017: Rs. 1,850,240}

Fulure mini kease pay under non llable operaling lease are as follows:
fAmaount in Rs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Mot Tater than one year 1407911 1,592,595
Later than one year and not later than five years 2,334,658 4,142,304
Later than five years & »
_ 3,642,569 5,735.203
The total rental cxpense under canceilable operating lease rentals for the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to Rs 3 16,000 {31 March 2017: Rs. 192,000).
33. Earnings per share (EPS)
All amounis are in Indian Rupees excepi share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(Loss)/ proflt astribatable to ordinary shareholders
{Loss) profit for the year after taxes (ay* {37,125,974) 3,658,825
{iy Appodioned to Class 1 cquity shares (by* (37,035,172) 3,649310
{iiy Apporiioned to Class 11 equity shares () (90,802} 9.015
Weighted average number of Class | equity shares (dy 514,045 50,609
Basic Earnlngs Per Class 1 equity share (Rs.) [bd] (72.05) TLI2
Weighted average number of Clags 1§ equity shares (o ym* 1008 100
(¢) Basle Earnings Per Class 11 equity share (Rs.) [efe] (90.06) 90.15
*Undistributed profit to be distributed to holders of two classes of shares
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017
Class T {37,035.47 3,649,810
Class Il (90,802} 9,015
4 Computution of welghted average number of Class | equity shares wsed in ealculating basie earning per share is set out below:
Partlcolars For the year ended For the yesr ended
31 Murch 2018 31 March 2017
Opening balance 506 050 50,609
Effect of shares issved on conversion of CCD 7,955 -
Weiphted average number of equity shares for the year 514,045 50.609
«*#Cpmputation of weighted avernge number of Class 1 equity shares used in caleulutin basic carning per share is set out below:
Particulars For the year cnded For the year ended
31 Mareh 2018 31 March 217
Opening balance 1.000 100
Effect of fresh lssoe of shares 8 -
Weighted average number of equity shares for the year 1,008 100

34, Employee stock option scheme

The Company has granted stock options to its exceutive emplayees under the PESOP 2010" plun. The plan was approved by the Board of Directors during October 2010, providing for

issue of 3,000 stock options and subsequeatly amended by Board of Directors (o provide 28,678 shares to certain employees of the Company.

The maragement has not reflected the gecounting for ESOP as per the Guidanee note on Accounting for Employee Share Based Payments issued by the Instilute of Chartersd
Accountants of Indin (' ICAL). Further, as requited by the Guidanie note, the relevant disclosures perlaining to the ESOP plan has not been made ag the Company belives that this sawd

Guid: nete is nat datory.

Valuation / Fair value assessment of oulstanding stack oplions and recognition of expenses therean in Statement of Profit and loss, 8s required under Guidance note |& on Employee

share-based paymenis wag not curried out due to uncertainty in exereising of autstanding stock options by the employess.



Mabisy Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

35. Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

The Ministry of Micco, Small and Medium enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends
+s memorandum number as allocated after filing of the d

in theis correspond with s ¢ 3 the entrep
poyable to such enterprises as at 3] March 2018 and 31 March 2017 has been rmade in the financiol statements b

not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act.

ased on the information
Further, in view of the management, the inpact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordonve with the provision of

A 4 .,‘_;1 the di

received and

that the micro and smell enterprises should mention
in respect of sroumMs
ilable with the C

pany.

the Act do not expecied to be material. The Company has

Based on the information available with the Company, there are no supphiers who are registered as tmicro, small or medium enlerprises undes "The Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as et 31 March 2018,

fAmount in Rs)
Particulars Asal As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
The amounes remaining wnpaid to miceo and stall supphicrs as at the end of the year:
— Principal : -
— Interest - =
The nmount of interest paid by (he buyer as per the Micto Sosall and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 - -
(MSMED Act, 2006).
The amounts of the payments made to micre and small suppliers beyond the oppointed day during each accounting - -
yeir,
Thi amount of interest due und payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but - -
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest speeified under MSMED Aet, 2006,
The amount of interest aecnied and remaining unpaid at the end of each sccounting year. - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the - -
interest dues a8 above are actunlly paid W the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance a8 a deductible
expenditure undct the MSMED Act, 2006,
36, Earnings in forcign currency
fAmonnt in Rsl
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Sale of services 6,257,701 14,020,181
37. Expenditure In foreign corrency
{Amount in Rs)
Partculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Server hosting charges - 1,054,455
Subseription for application and softwares 210,270 569,885
38. Detalls of unhedged foreign corrency
(Ampunt in Rs)
Particulors Currency For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Trade receivable usD 3,195 19,273
TNR 206,833 1,249,634

39, Events after the reporting date
In the month May 2018, the Company issued shares to new invesiors as helow:

(i) 100 and 33 pumber of equity shares of face value of Re 1 each to SIDBI Trustee Company Limited Ade [ndia Opportunities Fund and Vistea ITTCL (ndia) Limited (Trustee of Triton

Fund 1, scheme of Triton Aliemative Investment Trust) respectively and,

(i) 263,780 end #7,589 number of 0.001% Compulsorily Converlible Preference Shares of face value of Re | cuch to SIDBI Trustes Cormpany Limited Afe India Oppormnities Fund

and Vistra YTCL (India) Limited (Trustes of Triton Fund 1, scheme of Triton Allemative Investment Trust) respectively.



Mabisy Technologles Private Limited
Notes to Anancial statements (continued)

40, Detalls of Specified Bank Notes (SBN)

During the previous year, the Comgany had specified bank notes or other denominition note as tefined in the MCA notification G.S.R. 308(E) dated 30 March 2017. The detailo of
Specified Benk Notes (SBN) held and transacted dusing the period from 8 November 2016 10 30 December 2016, the denomination wise SBMs and other noies as per the nolification
is given below:

(Amount in Rs}

Particalars
SBNs Other denomimation noics Tolal

Closing cash in hand as on 8 November 2016 1,011,500 312,930 1,324,430
(+) Permitted receipts - 243,658 843,658
(+) Withdrawal from bank - - -
(=) Permiitted payments - 607,280 607,280
{-} Amount deposited in Banks 1.011,500 340,240 1,351,740
Closing cash in hand as on 30 De ber 2016 - 209,068 200,068

41. The financial statements for the previous year were audited by a finn other than B S R & Co. LLP

42, Previous vears figures wherever necessary. have been regrouped, reclagsified and rearranged to conform with those of the cwsrent year.

Particulars Previous year grouping Current year grouping Amaunt in Rs
Accrued expenses Trade payables Other current liabilities 1,371,073
Foreign withholding of txes Tax expense Qther expenses 451319

The aotes referred 1o above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date allached

for BSR & Co, LLP
Chariered Accoviniants

Jor and on beheif of the Board of Directors of
Mobisy Technologles Private Limited
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Directors’ Report

To,
The Members
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the Annual Report of the Company logether with the
Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 318t March 2018.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS!:

The Company's financiai perfermance, for the year ended 31 March 2018 is summarized below:
{Amounts in INR)

Particufars 31% March 2018 | 31" March 2017

Revenue from opérations 19,87,97,310 10,22,01,731
Other Income 14,38.615 773,306
Total Income 19,99,37,125 10,28,75,127
Operating Expenses 23,19,46,639 0,67 ,64,081
Profit/{L.oss) before Depreciation {3,20,08,514) 62,11,046
Depreciation 44,306,125 24,93,830
Profit before Tax (3,64,39,639) 37,147,218
Provision for Tax {6,86,335) 58,390
Tax on proposed Dividend - -
Transfer tc Generai Reserve - -
Surplus/(Deficit) carried to Balance Sheet {3,71,25,974) 36,58,828

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited (“Mobisy”) was founded by 2 smalf team of mobile
engineering in early 2008 and is based in Bengeluru, India. Mobisy provides technology
solutions for automating sales and distribution workfiows of congumer companies in india and

other emerging markets.

Further, Mabisy is building a marketplace for brands and distributors of fast-moving consumer
goods (FMCG) to transact with retaifers,

Mohisy Fechnologies Private Limited ~Registered office: 3rd Floor, Sri Arusachzleshwara Building, Sy No
75/1, Bellandur Main Road, Bellaadur, Bengatury - 560103, Karnataka
CIN- UT2900K A 2008PTCI45157; Email: info@mebisy.com
Private & Confidential
1




Operations

The Company has reported total revenue of ¥18,99,37,125 for the financial year 2017-18 as
compared to ¥10,29,75,127 in the financial year 2016-17. Company incurred a loss of
#3,71,25,974 in the financial year 2017-18 as compared to profit of ¥36,58,825 in the financial
year 2016-17.

2. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There is no change in the nature of the business of the company during the Financial Year
2017-18,

3. RESERVES

There is no transfer of any amount to General Reserve Account during the Financial Year
ended 31 March 2018,

4. DIVIDEND

There has been no dividend declared by the Company during the Financial Year 2017-18.

5. CAPITAL

The Company at the Extra-ordinary general meeting held on 25th October 2017 sub-divided
Class | and Class I equity shares and CCPS of face value of Rs.10 each into shares of Re.1
each respectively, this does not impact the Amount of Share Capital Issued, Paid-Up and
Subscribed. The said shares were fully paid up as on the date of Sub-division of shares of the

company.
8. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required pursuant to section 982(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rufe 12(1) of the
Companies Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT 8
is being enclosed as a part of this Annual Report as Annexure- 1.

7. DIRECTORS

During the Financial Year 2017-18 there was no Change in the Directors of the Company and
during the Financial Year Directors are as foliows:

1. Mr, Lalit Govind Bhise
2. Mr. Shree Anant Kulkamni {Form DIR-6 was filed on 02 April 2018, for change in name

from “Shree Anant Kulkarni” to “Shree Bhise™)
3. Mr. Rajesh Srivathsa (Nominee Director)



8. BOARD MEETINGS

Board Of Directors Meeting
The Board of Directors had met 24 times during the fin
intervening gap between the two Board Meeting was wi

Companies Act, 2013.

ancial year on the following dates the
thin the period prescribed under the

1) 01-04-2017 9) 16-08-2017 17)27-12-2017
2) 26-04-2017 10) 04-10-2017 18) 30-12-2017
3) 02-05-2017 11) 24-10-2017 19) 11-01-2018
4) 14-06-2017 12) 28-10-2017 20)19-01-2018
5) 0107-2017 13) 30-10-2017 21) 24-01-2018
8) 01-08-2017 - 14) 10-11-2017 22) 10-02-2018
7) 01-09-2017 15) 28-11-2017 23)26-03-2018

16) 20-12-2017

24) 28-03-2018

8) 14-09-2017

Further, the status of Directors attending the Board Meeting is as follows:

$r. No. Name of Directors | No. of Meeting Held | No. of Meetings
Attended
1 Mr. Lalit Govind 24 24
Bhise
2 Ms. Shree Bhise 24 24
3 Mr. Rajesh Srivathsa | 24 24

Extraordinary General Meeting

There were 02 Extraordinary General meetings convened to discuss special matters relating to
the Business, The dates of reeting heid were

1. 25-10-2017

2. 19-01-2018

9. MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FI NANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
The following has been the event or change su bsequent to the date of Financial Statements that
has warranted or materially affected any financial position of the Company between the date of
closure of financial statements and finalization of the Board's Report.
In the month May 2018, the Company issued shares to new investors as below:

{100 and 33 number of equity shares of face value of Re 1 each to SIDBI Trustee
Company Limited A/c Indian Opportunities Fund and Vistra ITCL (India) Limited (Trustee
of Triton Fund |, Scheme of Triton Alternative investrment Trust) respectively and,

ff. 263,780 and 87,589 number of 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of
face value of Re 1 each to SIDBI Trustee Company Limited A/c Indian Opportunities
Fund and Vistra ITCL (India) Limited (Trustee of Triton Fund 1, Schame of Triton

Alternative Investment Trust) respectively.



10. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

There were no foans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said

provision is not applicable.

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Financial Year there were no new contracts entered which require approval under

Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and there were n¢ materially significant related
party transactions made by your Company during the year and hence no information is required
to be provided as prescribed under Section 13(3)h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Ruie

8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014. [ Req}@ Aancrvane 2
12. CORPQRATE SQCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to the company. Hence no as
such committee formed.

13. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
in pursuance of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b} The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the

profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the ptovisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concerts basis;

(&) The directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) The directors had devised proper systems (o ensure corapliance with the provisions of alt
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

14. INFORMATION ABOUT THE EINANCIAL PERFORMANCE / FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE SUBSIDIARIES / ASSQCIATES/ JOINT VENTURE

The Company does not have any subsidiaries or asscciates, nor has it entered in to any joint

venture with any organization.



15. AUDITORS

At the Annual General Meeting held on 15 September 2017, M/s Mahesh V Associates,
Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the office
till the conciusion of next Annual General Meeting of the Company .

There was a Casual Vacancy of the Statutory Auditors of the company, due to resignation of the
M/s Mahesh V Associates, as statutory auditors vide their Letter dt. 23.05.2018. To fill the
casual Vacancy caused due to the resignation of the previous Auditors, the company appointed
Ms. BS R & Co. LLP as statutory auditors in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting Dt.
08.06.2018 to hold office till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting of the Company.

In terms of Section 139 of the Gompanies Act, 2013, the appointment of the auditors is made for
the term of Five Years till the conciusion of 15® Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the
appointment of , M/s, B S R & CO. LLP, Chartered Accountants, as statutory auditor of the
Company, is made for the term of 5 years till the conclusion of 15% Annual General Meeting with
the consent of sharsholder at this AGM.

16. QUALIFICATION AND RESPONSE TO AUDITOR’S REPORT

"attention is drawn fo note 34 of the notes fo accounts to the financial statements,
wherein management has mentioned that it has not accounted for employee share
based payment plans as per the Guidance note on Accounting for Employee Share
Based Payments issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india (1CAL). In our
view, non-accounting of employee share based payment cost is not in consonance with
the said Guidance note. Due to non-availabifity of sufficient information, impact of
adjustments for stock options granted and related disclosures thereof on the financial
staternents cannot be presently defermined.”

Management Response -

The Company has prepared and presented the financial statements in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles India (GAAP), GAAP comprises mandatory
gecounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"),
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of
Companies Act 2013, as applicable, Accounting Standards (‘AS") and other generally accepted
accounting principles in India. The Company is of the view that the said guidance note
highlighted by the Auditors regarding Employee Stock Option Scheme(ESOP) is not applicable
to the Company as MCA has notified onfy Accounting Standards to be adopted by Companies
and hence the same is not binding on the company.

17. DEPOSITS

During the Financial Year, the Company has not accepted any deposits as prescribed under
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit)

Rules, 2014,



18, INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

With reference to Section 143(3)(i) read with MCA vide notification dated 13th June 2017
G.S.R. BB3(E) providing exemption from Internal Financial Controls to specific private
companies. The Company does satisfy the condition and hence is exempted from Internal
Financial Controls, ‘

49. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Board of Directors monitor companies credit risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, regulatory
risk and enterprise risk by regular reviews with management and external auditors. In_ its
periodic meetings discusses the accounting and financial controls and assessment of business
risks, '

Risk Management Framework and policy documents have been created to govern the
Enterprise Risk Management process. The framework and policy cover processes for
identification of critical risks, corresponding mitigation measures already in place, mitigation
measures to be implemented and determining the residual risk rating for each risk.

The ‘three lines of defense’ risk management model has been implemented to identify, assess,
monitor and mitigate various categories of risks. Risks identified through various audit, testing
and reporting activities are addressed in a systematic and time bound manner through
implementation of effective and lasting risk mitigation action plans. Critical risks and related
mitigation action plans are discussed at periodic meetings with various stakeholdeis including
senior business leaders, the Executive Management team and the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors of the parent company.

20. TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The Cormpany did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years,
Therefore, thers were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and

Protection Fund (IEPF}.

21. SIGNIEICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

OR TRIBUNALS
There have been no significant and Material orders passed by the Regulators or courts or

{ribunals.

22. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The Company being a private limited company, the provisions of Section 149 is not applicable.

23. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL ACT, 2013

The company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the

requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints

&



received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary,
trainees) are covered under this policy. The Company did not receive any complain during the
year 2017-18.

24. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE OUTGO

a. Information Relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption

The Company’s operations are not power intensive. Nevertheless, the Company has introduced
various measures to conserve and minimize the use of energy. Measures introduced include
using energy efficient computer terminals, purchasing energy efficient equipment, incorporating
the latest technology and preventive maintenance program for all electrical and mechanical
equipment. _

b. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation

As a matter of routine practice, the Company reviews various technologies and their associated
assets being employed. Upgrades are performed to keep in pace with new requirements as
also retirement of obsolete equipment/s are practiced o ensure that maintenance costs and
performance risks are mitigated

¢. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
The Company is making continuous efforts to explore and enlarge its share in the existing

market for export of IT and ITES Services. Information on Foreign Exchange earnings and
outgo are specified in the notes to the accounts. in brief, they are:

Particulars 2017-18
{a) Earnings 682,57.701
{b) Qutgo 2,410,270
25. Shares: -
a) Buy Back of Securities

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

b} Sweat Equity )
The company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review.

¢) Bonus Shares ,
No bonus shares were issued during the year under review.

d) Employee Stock Option Plan

The plan was approved by the Board of Directors during October 2010, During the financial year
the Employee Stock Option Plan, is being aligned with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 by the consent of the members of the Company in its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting by
way of Special Resolution dated 25th October, 2017.



As on March 31% 2018 total number ¢f shares issued and exercised under the said Plan was
15,458, :

The exercise price of options issued to employees were at Face Value of Shares.
The vesting of 25% of Shares shall be at the end of one (1) year from the date of grant and the

remaining Options shall vest on a quarterly basis over a period of three (3) years from the end
of the first year mentioned above.

Acknowledgement

. Your Directors. place..on..record  their appreciation for employses at all levels, who have
contributed to the growth and performance of your Company. e

Your Directors also thank all the Stakeholders of the Company for their continued su pport.

For and on behalf of the Board
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited

L%Bhisa Shree Bhise

Director Direcior
DIN: 02202845 DiN: 02759442

Date 12 September 2018
Place: Bengaluru
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MOBISY

Annexure-@to Director’s Report

{Pursuant to Ciause {h) of sub-gection {(3) of Section 134 of the Act and rule 8(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered info by the company with related
partias referred {o in sub section {1} of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms

fength transaction under third proviso theratg.

1. Detalis of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions not at NIL

Arm’s Length Basis

2, Details of Contract or Arrangemants or Transactions at Arm's NiL

Length Basis

tor and on Behalf of the Board

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited

o

Lalit Govind Bhise Shree Bhise
Director Director
DIN: 02202845 DIN: 02759442

Date: 12th September 2018
Place: Bangalore

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited - Regiseered office: 3rd Flaer, Sri Arunachaleshwara Building, Sy No 75/1,
Beliandar Main Road, Bellandur, Bzngatore - 560103, Karnataks
CIN- UT2908W A2008PFCN4SEST; Email: info@mabisy.com
Private & Confidential




MOBISY

ANNEXURE 3 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT IBOARD’S REPORT]:

Statement on compliances of applicable Secretarial Standards {S5):

Company has complied with the applicable Secretavial Standards i.e, S3 1 and 85 2 relating
to Board Meetings and General Meetings Respectively.

Compliance of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013
and Section 23{3) and 36 of the Companies (Amendment} Act, 2017:

As per the notification dated 31st July, 2018, the company has placed z copy of the annual
return on the website of the company and the web-link of such annual return is give below:

https:/ /bizom.in/annualreturn17-18.pdf

For and on bel If of the Board

‘\ i
Lalit Go\?izfﬁs {j{ ; \V
Director %ﬁfse
DIN:02202845 DII‘LCiDF

DIN: 02759442

Date: 12 September, 2018
Place: Rangalore

Mobisy Techuologics Private Limited —Registered office: 701, Block 5, Suncity Apts, Fbbalur Vidlage, Near
Savjapar Road Junction, Bangalore Karsataku 560102 India
CIN 1172900K A 2008PTC043 137, Email: infognmobisy.com
Private & Confidentiat



Noti 14

Notice is hercby given that an 16/2018-19 Annual Genera) Meeting of members of Mobisy Technologies
Private Limited will be held at a shorter notice on Tuesday 25th day of September, 2018 at 5:00 P.MLIST at 3rd
Floor, Sri Arunachaleswara Building, Sy. No. 75/1, Bellandur Main Road, Bangatore, Karnataka, 560103, India
to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

ADOPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TOGETHER WITH THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND
AUDITORS REPORT THEREON:

To recelve, consider, approve and adopt the audited Financial Statements comyprising of the Profit and Loss

Account for the period 1% April 2017 vo 31*March 2018 Balance sheel as at 31% March 2018 together with the

Directors’ Report and Auditors Report thereon,

APPOINTMENT OF Mfs. B 8§ R & Co. LLP, BANGALORE [Firm Registration Number:
101248W/W-100022] AS STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY IN PLACE OF OF M/s. MAHESH V

AND ASSOCIATES, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, BANGALORE:

To consider and if thought fif, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resoluticn as an

Ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 (8] and section 141 of Cormpanies Act, 2013 read
with rule 4 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Audit and Auditors} Amendment
Rules, 2018, consent of the members of the Company be and s hereby accorded for appointment of M/s. B S R
& Co. LLP, Bangalore (FRN 101248W/W-1060022), having their oifice at Maruthi Info-Tech Centre 1i Floor,
11-12/1 Inner Ring Road Koramangala Bangalore 560 071 as Statutory Auditors of the Company in place of
M/s. Mahesh V and Associates, Chartered Accountants, Bangalore, for the period of 5 years from conclusion of
this 10th Annual general Meeting till the conclusion of 15th Annual general Meeting, until any resignation

Wy
Mobisy Technulagies Private Linsited ~Registered office: 3rd Floor, Sri Arunschaleshwara B
BeHandor Main Road, Bellandur, Bangalore - 560103, Karnataka 5
i #...iBa

{,_‘}' ,Eﬁ@\?sn
CIN. UT2900KA2008PTCO45157; Email: info@mpbisy.com | Pa: n;w{;}
Private & Confidential Q\:ﬁ‘*\\ T
OUFS
Q\‘;"' :




MOBISY

better is received from R § R & Co, LLP for any reason whatsoever, at a remuneration to be fixed by the Board

in consoltation with them.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the necessary documents alung with e-form ADT-1 be filed with the Registrar

of Companies, Karnataka under the digital signaturs of any of the directors of the Company.”

By Order of the Board
For Mobisy Technologies Private Limited: .

- /i3

Shree Bhise

Director (DIN: 02759442} -
701, Block 5, Suncity Apts. Ibbalur Village,
Bangalore- 560102 Karnataka.

To.

Members,
Directors
Sratutory Auditors

Date: 12th Septembeer,, 2018
Place: Bangzlore

NOTES:

Each member entitled to attend and vote Is entitled to appoint one proxy to attend and vote instead
of itself und the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument appoeinting proxy in
the prescribed format {available upon request} duly completed and stamped, in order to be

effective, must be deposited with the Campany not less than 48 hours before the conmmencement of

the meeting.

Mohisy Techrologies Private Limited ~Registered office: 3rd Floor, Sri Arunachaleshwarz Building, Sy No 78/1,
Bellandur Main Road, Bellandur, Bangalore - 368183, Karnstaka
CIN- UT72500KA2008PTCH45157; Email: infoimobisy,com
Private & Confidential



ii.

iif,

iv.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of up to and not exceeding fifty (50) members and
holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company. Further, a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person

shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder.

Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the board resolution

authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

The Meeting is being convened at a shorter notice, after obtaining the consent, in
writing, of more than 95% of the Members of the Company, pursuant to the provisions

of Section 101 of the Act and Articles of Association of the Company.

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited —Registered office: 701, Block 5, Suncity Apts, Ibbalur Village, Near
Sarjapur Road Junction, Bangalore Karnataka 560102 India
CIN U72900K.A2008PTC045157; Email: info@mobisy.com
Private & Confidential .



THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Consent by shareholder for shorter notice
[Pursuant to Section 101]

To,

The Board of Directors

‘Mobisy Technologies Private Limited
3rd Floor, Sri Arunachaleshwara Building, Sy no 75 /1, Bellandur main road, Bellandur,
Bangalore - 560103, Karnataka, India

I,_____,sonof ____,residentof , Being the registered and beneficial owner of ___
equity shares of Re. 1/- each in my own name in Mobisy Technologies Private Limited
(“Company”) constituting _% of the paid-up share capital of the Company hereby give
consent, pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act 2013 to hold the 10th Annual
General Meeting on Tuesday, 25th September 2018 at a shorter notice.

Signature:
Name:
Date:

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited —Registered office: 701, Block 5, Suncity Apts, Ibbalur Village, Near
Sarjapur Road Junction, Bangalore Karnataka 560102 India

CIN U72900KA2008PTC045157; Email: info@mobisy.com
Private & Confidential



MOBISY

Form No. MGT. 11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U72900KA2008PTC045157
Name of the company: MOBISY TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered office: 3RD FLOOR, SRI ARUNACHALESHWARA BUILDING,

SYNO 75/1, BELLANDUR MAIN ROAD, BELLANDUR,
BANGALORE - 560102, KARNATAKA, INDIA

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-maii Id:

Folio No/Client

Id: DP ID: NA

shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

I, being the member (s} of

1, Name:

Address:

E-mail Id;

Signature:____or failing her/him

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited -Registered office: 701, Block 5, Suncity Apts, Ibbalur Village, Near
Sarjapur Road Junction, Bangalore Kamataka 560102 India
CIN U72900K A2008PTC045157; Email: info@mobisy.com
Private & Confidential



MOBIS

as my proxy to attend and vote {on a poll) for me and on my behalf at the 10th Annual

General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, 25th September 2018 at 3rd Floor,

Sri Arunachaleswara Building, Sy. No. 75/1, Bellandur Main Road, Bangalore, Karnataka,

560103, India and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated

below:

~ ResolutionNo.

Sr. No.

Resolution

Approved / Rejected

Adoption Of Annual Financial Statements Together With
The Directors’ Report And Auditors Report Thereon

To Consider and Approve, Appointment Of M/S.BSR &
Co. LLP, Bangalore as Statutory Auditors of the
Company in place of Mahesh V and Associates,
Chartered Accountants, LLP Bangalore:

Signed this of. 2018

Affix
Revenue

Stamp

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and
depaosited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before

the commencement of the Meeting.
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited —Registered office: 701, Block 5, Suncity Apts, Ibbalur Village, Near
Sarjapur Road Junction, Bangalore Karnataka 560102 India
CIN U72900K A2008PTC045157; Email: info@mobisy.com

Private & Confidential



Attendance slip

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited

Registered Address: 3rd Floor, Sri Arunachaleshwara Building, Sy No 75/1, Bellandur
Main Road, Bellandur, Bangalore - 560103, Karnataka, India

-------- (name of the Shareholder)

Annual General Meeting- Tuesday, 25th September

2018 Registered Folio no

Number of Shares held

[ certify that | am a member of the Company.
I hereby record my presence at the 10th Annual General Meeting of the Company held

on Tuesday, 25th September 2018 at 319 Floor, Sri Arunachaleswara Building, Sy. No.
75/1, Bellandur Main Road, Bangalore, Karnataka, 560103, India at 5:00 P.M. IST.

(Name)
Member of the Company

Note: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall.
Members are requested to bring the copies to the AGM.

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited —Registered office; 701, Block 5, Suncity Apts, Ibbalur Village, Near
Sarjapur Road Junction, Bangalore Karnataka 560102 India
CIN U72900K.A2008PTC045157; Email: info@mobisy.com
Private & Confidential




Route Map

: " DEVARABISAN/ ., AL
o3t Qffice: _ Bem SO+ 4
w%?é S |
C shasgonn Ave - f";l"?
- _ GREEN GLEN
!1&;4&&_6”- L&gﬁav‘r N
a . &%  BELLANDUR
uncity Aparunants -4 @ o
ARBFS a&ssocrahm ::E

i.AKE Vﬁﬁ%‘i

g |
| RES?D&Q@Y
Be BT g

L) "l’emao{m Rwam«m

ire Statinn €% Mapdam B20YE

Saéa;}w Ro

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited ~Registered office: 3rd Floor, Sri Arunachaleshwara Building, Sy No 75/1,
Bellandur Main Road, Betlandur, Bangalore - 560103, Karnataka
CIN- U72900KA2008PTC045157; Email: info@mobisy.com
Private & Confidential



	INBLRPRS02_INBLRPRN03_4116_001
	INBLRPRS02_INBLRPRN03_4115_001

